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1109 - 1143 Riverside Ave. (East side) 
Baltimore, Md. 
Private access 

The east side of the 1100 block of Riverside Ave. is improved with a 
variety of house types dating from the late 1830's to the 1880's. The 
earliest houses on the block are at the north end and consist of a group of 
two story, two bay wide gable-roofed brick houses built in the late 1830's 
by William Gist (1109, 1111-1113) and Isaac Vincent (1115-1117). 1109 Riverside 
Ave.' was remodeled after the Civil War and now has a shed roof and bracketed 
cornice, but the pairs of houses at 1111-1113 and 1115-1117 Riverside Ave. retain 
their original exterior form. At 1119 Riverside Ave. there is a two. story, two 
bay wide shed-roofed house with bracketed cornice which represents a later 
remodeling of an original 1850's house built on the site by Vincent. Farther 
to the south, at 1129 Riverside Ave. there is a similar two story, two bay wide 
brick house with shed roof and bracketed cornice built in the 1870's. At 1131-
1143 Riverside Ave. there is a row of three story, two bay wide brick houses 
with shed roofs and bracketed cornices, built as a group by Jacob Funk in the 

yearly 1880's. 
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This row of three story, two bay brick houses with shed roofs was built in the 
1880's as part of the development of this side of Riverside Ave. All of the houses 
have been covered with formstone. 

The houses are three stories in height, not quite 13' wide, and occupy lots 80' deep. 
Each house is two rooms deep and has a three story high, one bay wide and deep stair hall 
extension which connects the main house to a two story high, two bay deep rear addition. 
1137 and 1139 Riverside Ave. have a later extra two story high, one bay deep section, 
and 1141-1145 Riverside have later two story high, one bay deep frame sections. The 
houses are constructed in running bond but the facades have been covered with formstone. 
The shed roofs were at one time capped by a stamped sheet metal cornice similar to 
that still remaining at 1133 Riverside Ave. but at the present time all of the cornices 
are gone. Each pair of houses originally had a paired chimney located along the 
partition wall between the houses on the rear section of the roof and each also had 
a rear end chimney located at the east end of the two bay deep rear addition. 

Although the formstone covering has hidden the original treatment of the door and 
window lintels and sills, it is apparent that all of the openings had flat lintels, 
probably splayed brick. All of the window openings are filled with 1/1 double hung sash. 
Each house still has its original Mission-style door, set beneath a single light transom 
filled with a piece of stained glass. The houses sit on high basements, the entrances 
being reached by four brick or stone steps. Each house has a wide rectangular basement 
opening located beneath the first floor window. An arched alleyway runs back between 
each pair of houses. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

This row of houses is significant as being one of a fairly small group of 
large, Victorian-style houses built in the Federal Hill area after the Civil War. 
The houses were built to accomodate the rising number of middle-class residents 
in the area who had prospered at local trades and businesses to the point where 
they could afford a large house with definite stylistic pretensions. Apart from 
the fashionable shed roof and bracketed cornice, the houses were essentially the 
same as their gable-roofed predecessors, both in plan and facade details. 

This group of houses was built by Jacob Funk, who also built the pair of 
houses to the north at 1133-1135 Riverside Ave. and similar houses adjoining this 
group to the south.l 

Baltimore City Land Records, Liber JB 1475, Folio 486; FAP 902, Folio 289; 

GR 777, Folio 568; AM 246, Folio 55 
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